
Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Monday, May 23, 2016 
1 

The meeting of the Community Development Authority of the City of Onalaska was called to 1 
order at 4:06 p.m. on Monday, May 23, 2016.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced 2 
and a notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Mayor Joe Chilsen, Ann Brandau, Ron 5 
Johnson, Ald. Jim Olson, Ald. Barry Blomquist, John Lyche, Mike Gargaro, Mark Hansen 6 
 7 
Also Present:  Interim Land Use and Development Director Katie Aspenson, Financial Services 8 
Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler, 7 Rivers Alliance Executive Director Lisa Herr 9 
 10 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from the previous meeting 11 
 12 
Motion by John, second by Mark, to approve the minutes from the previous meeting as printed 13 
and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 14 
 15 
On voice vote, motion carried. 16 
 17 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 18 
 19 
Mike called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that portion of the 20 
meeting. 21 
 22 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 23 
 24 
Item 4 – Election of: 25 
 26 

a. Chair 27 
b. Vice Chair 28 

 29 
Motion by John, second by Ald. Olson, to nominate Mike Gargaro as Chair and Mark Hansen as 30 
Vice Chair of the Community Development Authority. 31 
 32 
Mike called three times for any other nominations and closed the nomination process. 33 
 34 
Motion by John, second by Ald. Blomquist, to elect Mike Gargaro as Chair and Mark Hansen as 35 
Vice Chair of the Community Development Authority. 36 
 37 
On voice vote, motion carried. 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 

Reviewed 5/25/16 by Katie Aspenson 
 



Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Monday, May 23, 2016 
2 

Item 5 – Update from 7 Rivers Alliance 42 
 43 
Lisa Herr noted that 7 Rivers Alliance serves 14 counties in the region and said the 44 
organization’s goal is to serve as a connector for communities.  Lisa highlighted the following 45 
during her presentation: 46 
 47 

• 7 Rivers Alliance focused on workforce development and agritourism in 2015. 48 
• In 2014, 50 percent of the region’s businesses indicated that the availability of a skilled 49 

workforce was both their top priority and their most significant obstacle related to 50 
growth.  In 2015, 75 percent of the region’s companies indicated they had had difficulty 51 
finding skilled laborers.  As a result, 7 Rivers Alliance, in partnership with the State of 52 
Wisconsin and the Economic Development Administration, will be leading a regional 53 
workforce development planning project. 54 

• The average unemployment rate in the region is approximately 3 percent.  In some of the 55 
region’s counties, one worker out of three will be eligible for Medicare within the next 56 
five years.  There are counties in Minnesota where there is less than one worker for every 57 
job available.  As a result, a strong attraction and retention strategy is necessary to ensure 58 
long-term viability for the region and its businesses.  A project team will be created, and 59 
this team will focus on the gap analysis pertaining to “where the need for jobs are worst” 60 
and how best to attract them [people]. 61 

• Phase One of the project will focus on workforce attraction and retention.  Phase Two 62 
will focus on the three major barriers (housing, transportation, childcare) for the 63 
workforce.  Organic Valley and Gundersen Health Systems are looking into daycare 64 
projects.  Regarding transportation, consideration will be given to expanding the smart 65 
bus model.  A rural workforce housing summit will be held June 1 in Sparta, and it will 66 
include representatives from federal and state agencies who will discuss how to create 67 
incentives for housing. 68 

• 7 Rivers Alliance also is looking at expanding grocery options for smaller communities. 69 
 70 
Lisa said she is in the process of planning for 2017 and asked the CDA what types of resources 71 
or support she could provide the City of Onalaska. 72 
 73 
John noted the type of housing Lisa had discussed is low density and pointed out that the city is 74 
landlocked.  John asked Lisa about the parameters 7 Rivers Alliance is drawing around the 75 
housing element. 76 
 77 
Lisa said 7 Rivers Alliance is working with the Chicago and Minneapolis Federal Reserves, The 78 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, the U.S. Department of Agriculture.  Lisa 79 
said “out of the box” options are being examined, noting that empty storefronts in downtown 80 
Sparta are being converted to duplex housing.  Lisa said the June 1 event will examine mixed 81 
use; specifically, constructing retail and combining it with independent living.  Lisa noted that 82 

Reviewed 5/25/16 by Katie Aspenson 
 



Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Monday, May 23, 2016 
3 

there are elderly citizens who no longer wish to perform yardwork and home maintenance, but 83 
yet are not ready to move into an assisted-living facility.  Lisa said a question that needs to be 84 
answered is how to free up single-family dwellings. 85 
 86 
Ald. Olson said, “Whenever you’re talking about the federal government’s involvement in 87 
housing for our particular community we have certain standards that I think is some of the 88 
reasons that we are as successful as we are.  [Stipulations] usually come with federal money, and 89 
if that hurts the quality of life that we have here, I think that’s a detriment rather than a positive.” 90 
 91 
Lisa said the purpose of the June 1 event is to share best practices and replicate what the best fit 92 
will be for the city.  Lisa said developers are not willing to take on housing projects because they 93 
are not lucrative; therefore, there must be a way to create incentives and include employers in the 94 
discussion. 95 
 96 
Ald. Olson asked if increased education is part of the discussion regarding attracting employees. 97 
 98 
Lisa said the gap analysis – specifically, the production from high-demand programs at the 99 
region’s colleges and universities and the alignment with what employers are seeking – will be 100 
examined.  Lisa also noted there still would be a shortage of nurses even if both Gundersen 101 
Health Systems and Mayo hired every nursing graduate. 102 
 103 
John referred to a proposed north-south corridor and said he believes there must be a serious 104 
discussion regarding transportation solutions.  John said he would like to see 7 Rivers Alliance 105 
“take a stand” on this issue. 106 
 107 
Mark said he would like 7 Rivers Alliance to provide statistics on the number of underemployed 108 
individuals in the area.  Mark also inquired about the price point for housing. 109 
 110 
Lisa stated that housing is not her field of expertise, but she said the price range appears to be the 111 
affordable, single-family housing or the mixed-use housing that a single family would occupy.  112 
Lisa said she assumes it is middle-income housing ($150,000).  Lisa said communities need to 113 
discuss how to create smaller villages or communities where people can coexist. 114 
 115 
Mark said such housing likely would have to be constructed outside the city’s borders. 116 
 117 
Katie said developers have contacted the city about available land on which senior housing could 118 
be constructed.  However, Katie also noted that while there are a couple of larger parcels 119 
available, the “prime lots” in the city have been taken. 120 
 121 
Lisa noted that a business and community wellness summit will be held June 9 at Luther College 122 
in Decorah, Iowa.  Lisa said 7 Rivers Alliance also is seeking nominations for “Rising Stars 123 
Under 40.” 124 
Reviewed 5/25/16 by Katie Aspenson 
 



Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Monday, May 23, 2016 
4 

 125 
Item 6 – Update and discussion on the Building the Great River Landing Project 126 
 127 
Katie said the city has secured the required permits from the Wisconsin Historical Society and 128 
the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and that the city is in the process of finalizing a 129 
land swap with the Wisconsin DNR. 130 
 131 
Item 7 – Closed Session: 132 
 133 
To consider a motion to convene in Closed Session under Section 19.85(1)(e) of the Wisconsin 134 
Statutes for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the 135 
investing of public funds or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 136 
bargaining reasons require a closed session: 137 
 138 

• Discussion related to negotiation of strategies and contracts related to the downtown area. 139 
 140 
If any action is required in Open Session, as the result of the Closed Session, the CDA will 141 
reconvene in Open Session to take the necessary action and/or continue on with the printed 142 
agenda. 143 
 144 
Motion by Mark, second by John, to convene in Closed Session. 145 
 146 
On roll call vote:  Mark Hansen – aye, Ann Brandau – aye, Ron Johnson – aye, Ald. Jim Olson –147 
aye, John Lyche – aye, Ald. Barry Blomquist – aye, Mike Gargaro – aye, Mayor Joe Chilsen – 148 
aye.  In Closed Session. 149 
 150 
Motion by Mark, second by Ald. Blomquist to adjourn meeting at 5:20 p.m. 151 
 152 
 153 
Recorded by: 154 
 155 
Kirk Bey 156 

Reviewed 5/25/16 by Katie Aspenson 
 


